
 CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 7:02

 ROLL CALL: Present; D. Rosa, J. Challender, S. Feringa, K. Wentzloff, M. Timmins, J. Aukerman
 Excuse; D. VanHouten
 Staff Present; Lindsey Wolf, Planning and Zoning Administrator; Marcie Timmins, Recording Secretary.

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Members of the public may address the Commission regarding any
subject of community interest during public comment periods by filling out a Public Comment Card and
submitting it to the Secretary. Public comments are limited to three minutes per individual. Comments
during other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s discretion
Opened at 7:03

Brian Kelly- Talked about the value of light industrial space in Acme, and about hearing for the last many
years that light industrial space is in short supply in Acme. Staff report states there is no where to expand
it. Light industrial sprawl is contrary to the Master Plan and the desire of this community.
Asked that the PC solve that before removing 40 acres from the light industrial district. Kmart PUD
would sprawl the light industrial uses to our commercial corridor on US-31. Believes these would be a
serious change in our township.
Read from page five of the Master Plan.
Hopes that if the 40 acres is rezoned to Ag. there won’t be any negative impacts to the surrounding area.
Believes it would be a lot of density on Bates Rd.
Talked about the three times he visited the Horse show and seeing the tracker trailers leaving the festival
site overloaded with manure, which the neighbors complained about during a previous public hearing.
Has a video of following the truck with manure and hay falling off, as well as appearing to roll through a
stop sign at Elk Lake Rd when it made a turn. Wants the Horse festival to continue to be a strong positive
to our community and resolve these compatibility issues.

Chuck Walter- There will be more than one access to the property (the proposed 40 acres) one on Arnold
Rd. and one on Bates.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Timmins, Support by Challender to approve the agenda as
presented. Motion carries

C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None

D. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: None

E. RECEIVE AND FILE:
1. RECEIVE AND FILE

a. None

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
a. None

G. CORRESPONDENCE:
1. Trail Field Observation Report – Beckett & Raeder

Went over the progress made on the new section of TART trail.

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. None

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Lisa Swanson, Clerk, within 24
hours of the meeting at 938-1350.

1

APPROVED MINUTES



I. OLD BUSINESS:
1. None

J. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Amendment 054- Rezoning request Traverse City Horse Shows LLC

Ron Gajoch- Discussed the PDR program and that this land would not be divided for
residential use. Horses are livestock and fall under agriculture and farming. This will
strictly be an agricultural use. Parcels will meet the zoning requirements set under Ag.
with five acre or greater sized parcels. There will be primary and secondary buildings.
Talked about how the farmettes would most likely reduce traffic due to people and horses
living right across the street, they will not have to drive in and out to participate or take
care of animals.

Lindse Wolf- Talked with counsel, Jeff Jocks, before the meeting about items to consider
before changing zoning classification. Wanted to make clear that no motion would be
made tonight. The PC must hold a public hearing to complete the process.
Wolf asked The Horse show if there were any uses that are related to the horse show that
could be utilizing the existing B-4 zoning that would eliminate the request or reduce the
request? Equipment storage, farm equipment sales, veterinary services, that would apply
to future operations.

Gajoch - said No.

Wolf- as far as the PDR program, were they interested in pursuing?
Gajoch- Doesn’t think they will pursue the PDR program. It is currently in an agricultural
preservation zone, as it is set forth by not only the township but also by the county.
Discussed the difficult aspects of light industrial uses without access to public utilities,
lack of infrastructure such as it exists now on that property and how it has historically
been farmed and would continue to be agricultural.

Aukerman- At first thought the spot was an oddity for the B-4 district but thought maybe
a B-4 district would be desirable in that area for fruit processing. Like the one on 31, they
have wells and are not on a septic system

Wentzloff discussed the limited area in the township for where B-4 could go. Identified in
other township work that we are kind of out of the B-4 area. Talked about businesses in
the light industrial that don’t need high intensity infrastructure to operate. Asked Chuck
Walter to explain the history of the B-4 distinct in that area due to his longevity in the
township.

Chuck Walter - Discussed the history of the zoning of that property as well as the current
B-4 zoned parcels that are still waiting to be occupied.

Timmins- asked if the farmettes would be something that are sold out right or if they will
be rented/leased out.

Gajoch - they will be sold. This will allow them to have larger stalls and paddocks while
staying for the whole season.

Wentzloff- reminded the PC that tonight's meeting is about the rezoning; it has nothing to
do with what might go there. Does it make sense for that parcel to be rezoned to Ag.
based on the eight criteria we use to make those determinations.

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Lisa Swanson, Clerk, within 24
hours of the meeting at 938-1350.

2



Challender wanted to know how many parcels
Gajoch answered twelve.

Rosa- asked for clarification about traffic on Arnold Rd. because of how far the property 
goes back.

Morrissey - already has approval from the road commission for the road going through 
the property.

Rosa - concerned that they may use that new property to develop new show rings and 
other horse show events on the new property thereby having horse shows happening on 
both sides of the road.

Wentzloff- In the special use permit it explains what they can have. It they wanted to 
expand to 2 more parcels they would have to come back to the Planning Commission.

Rosa- Asked about the property south of the rezoning request that is still undeveloped 
B-4 district.

Discussion about the existing undeveloped B-4 continued.

Aukerman- asked how many horses would be allowed on each parcel

Morrissey- they will be enforcing horse density on the property on a per acre basis.

Discussed primary square footage of residents, 500 sq. ft., in order to build a secondary 
structure.

Motion by Aukerman, Support by Timmins to set a public hearing on August 15th. 
for amendment 054, rezoning request Traverse City Horse Shows.
Motion Carries.

K. PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS
Opened at 7:45

Chuck Walter- Traffic study is currently ongoing in the area of the Horse Shows by the Bay.
Sensors were put at 72 and US 31 as well as at the roundabouts.
Closed public comment at 7:46.

1. Planning & Zoning Administrator Report – Lindsey Wolf
2. Township Board Report – Jean Aukerman

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Lisa Swanson, Clerk, within 24
hours of the meeting at 938-1350.

3



3. Parks & Trails Committee Report –
No updates given at this meeting.

 ADJOURN:     Motion by Timmins, Support by Feringa to adjourn the meeting.
 Motion carries

 

If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Lisa Swanson, Clerk, within 24
hours of the meeting at 938-1350.

4



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Lisa Swanson, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

                        
 

 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Members of the public may address the Commission regarding any 

subject of community interest during public comment periods by filling out a Public Comment Card and 
submitting it to the Secretary.  Public comments are limited to three minutes per individual.  Comments 
during other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s discretion 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 
C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

 
D. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
 
E. RECEIVE AND FILE:  

1. RECEIVE AND FILE 
a. None 

 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

a. None 
 
G. CORRESPONDENCE: 

1. Trail Field Observation Report – Beckett & Raeder 
 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
1. None 
 

I. OLD BUSINESS: 
1. None 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Amendment 054- Rezoning request Traverse City Horse Shows LLC 
 
 

K. PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER PC BUSINESS 
1. Planning & Zoning Administrator Report – Lindsey Wolf 
2. Township Board Report – Jean Aukerman 
3. Parks & Trails Committee Report –  

ADJOURN:                                

ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION  
SPECIAL MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 
6042 Acme Road Williamsburg, MI 49690 

July 26, 2022 7:00 p.m. 
 



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 1 of 7 
 

FIELD OBSERVATION REPORT NUMBER 3 
Acme Connector Trail 
Acme Township, MI 
 
From: Engineer/Landscape Architect/Designer 
 Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
 
To:  Lindsey Wolf, Acme Township 
 Chris Kushman, TART Trails 
 
Field Observation Date:  07-13-2022 
Field Observation Time: 10:30 AM 
Field Weather Conditions: Sunny, 70° 
 
Also Attending Field Observation Visit: Lindsey Wolf, Acme Township 
 
 
Reason for Site Visit: 
Construction Progress Observations 
 
Summary of Field Observations: 

1. Observations between Bunker Hill and Mt. Hope Road 
a. Rough Grading and placement of aggregate base appears to be 

substantially complete. 
 

 
Trail at Bunker Hill 
 



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 

 
Railroad right-of-way looking south 
 

   
 Trail looking southeast toward railroad right-of-wat (south side of Holiday Inn property)  



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 3 of 7 
 

  
 Trail looking north between Holiday Inn and Sleep Inn 

 

2. Observations along Mt. Hope Road 
a. Elmer’s working on ADA sidewalk ramp at Feast of Victory 

 
 Trail looking west at Feast of Victory 

 

 



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 4 of 7 
 

 

 
3. Observations along M-72 

a. No Activity 
 

4. Observations between Mt. Hope Road and Koti Development 
a. Wickcraft Deck stored for installation. 

 
b. Helical piles installed for Acme creek crossing 

 

 

 Acme Creek Crossing western boardwalk abutment (partially constructed) 

 



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 5 of 7 
 

 

 Acme Creek Crossing looking east 

 

 

 Acme Creek Crossing looking west 

 

 

 

 



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 6 of 7 
 

5. Observations between Roundabout and Koti Development 
a. Trail rough grading in progress between culvert and boardwalk 

 

 
 Trail rough grading east of Custom Manufacturing Boardwalk 

 

 
 Trail rough grading at box culvert crossing 

 
 



 

Field Observation Report Number 2 
Acme Connector Trail 
July 13, 2022  Page 7 of 7 
 

  
 Bottom of hill looking east 

 
END OF FIELD OBSERVATION REPORT 
 
Observations documented in this field report result from a courtesy review of construction 
to date. Statements or absence of statements in this report shall not constitute approval of 
work, in whole or part. Courtesy reviews do not waive contractor responsibility for contract 
document compliance. All work is subject to final review upon substantial completion. 
 

If you have additions and/or corrections to the above report, please contact the author.  
  
Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
  
Christopher G. DeGood, PE 
Principal 
 
ec: L. Wolf, Acme Twp., D. White, Acme Twp., C. Kushman, TART, T. Knutsen, BRI, Eric 
Sanborn, Elmer’s, M. Hawkins, Machin Engineering, M. Alley; GFA. 
 











































Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 

 

To:  Acme Township Planning Commission  

From: Lindsey Wolf, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date: July 19, 2022 

Re:  Zoning Ordinance Amendment 054 –Bates Rezoning Application; parcel 28-01-014-004-01 

 
 
Applicant/Owner: Matthew Morrissey 
   6535 Bates Road 
   Williamsburg, MI 49690 
 
Parcel Address: Bates Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690 
 
Parcel Number: 28-01-014-004-01 
 
Legal Description: PARCEL A-1: PART OF E 1/2 SEC 31 T28N R9W COM AT N 1/4 CNR SEC 31 TH  S 00 
DEG 57'42" E 2056.88' TO POB TH N 89 DEG 37'11" E 1329.80' TH N 00 DEG 57'35" W 738.89' TH N 89 DEG 
27'25" E 1330.40' TH S 00 DEG 58'24" E 1328.66' TH S 00 DEG 57'34" E 664.20' TH S 89 DEG 33'41" W 1330.58' 
S 00 DEG 57'51" E 67.68' TH S 89 DEG 36'55" W 1019.81' TH N 01 DEG 00'11" W 150.13' TH N 89 DEG 35'59" W 
276.81' TH N 89 DEG 35'59" W 33' TH N 00 DEG 58'51" W 578.97' TH N 00 DEG 57'42" W 586' TO POB 
SPLIT/COMBINED ON 06/23/2021 FROM 01-014-003-00, 01-014-004-00, 01-014-002-00, 01-014-002-10, 01-
014-028-03, 01-014-018-00; 
 
Current Zoning: A-1: Agricultural District 
 
Amendment Request: 
The Applicant/Owner is seeking a rezoning of approximately 40-acres of a 100.02 parcel along  the 
east side Bates Rd (between Brackett & M72/across from Flintfields) from B-4: Material Processing 
and Warehousing to A-1: Agricultural District to develop a series of small horse farms or farmettes. 
Purchasers are expected to be participants in the Traverse City Horse Shows.  
Subject Property: 

     
 

Planning and Zoning Staff Report  
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350   Fax: (231) 938-1510   Web: www.acmetownship.org 
 

M72 

 B
at

es
 R

d.
 

Brackett Rd 

http://www.acmetownship.org/


Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 
Analysis:  
The applicant wishes to use the area proposed for rezoning to accommodate series of small horse 
farms or farmettes. Agricultural uses (other than farm equipment sales) are not an allowed use 
under the B-4: Material Processing and Warehousing District but would be a use by right in the A-1: 
Agricultural District §6.12.2(a).  
“A farmette is a small residential farm run by an owner who earns income from a source other than 
the farm. It is sometimes known as a yokelet or a farmlet. Farmette owners are typically city 
workers who want to own rural land without operating a full farm. A farmette often includes a large 
vegetable garden, the occasional barn, tractor, and even farm or domestic animals, such as goats 
and cats. Farmetters usually rely on their tractor to plow or snow blow their driveways during the 
winter. Farmettes are usually around 50 acres. They can have a small hog pen, a few chickens in a 
chicken coop or a kennel house for dogs.” 
 
The following are additional items to consider for requests to change a zoning classification: 
 
1. When a properties zoning classification is changed, any use allowed under that 

classification will then be allowed on that property.  
 The current owner wishes to utilize the property for small horse farms or farmettes – a new 

owner may decide to have a completely different use (ex: an airport or airfield ). It is important 
to consider all the uses this will open in the district, as one will have a different impact than the 
other (health, safety, welfare). When considering a zoning change it is important to consider the 
uses allowed in the district, and not the use that the current landowner may or may not make of 
the property.  

 
2. Whether a change in zoning is consistent with the Master Plan and future land use plan.  

   

 
 

The future land use map designates the southern 40 acres of this parcel as Light Industrial 
& Warehousing. The Acme Township Community Master Plan defines Light Industrial & 
Warehousing as: 
 



Page 3 of 7 
 

The light industrial and warehousing category encompasses land use for light industrial, 
trade-related business and warehousing enterprises in the township. The existing uses 
currently are located along state highway M-72 and Bates Road (an area comprising some 
existing development of higher density industrial and business uses).  
 
The main objectives of the Industrial land use category are to provide for non-intrusive 
industrial operations in high density areas that stimulate the economic vitality of the 
Township without negativity impacting the surrounding area, and to provide employment 
opportunities for residents of the Township and surrounding region. Sound access 
management planning should be included in any new industrial developments.  
 
The intended uses in this category include, but are not limited to: enclosed wholesale 
facilities, warehouses, high technology industries, light manufacturing, telecommunications 
industry, and other non-intrusive industrial enterprises. Land uses in the Industrial area 
should comport with the policies and actions in the Master Plan.  

 
Although designated as Light Industrial & Warehousing on the Future Land Use Map, this 
request merits consideration. To ensure that agriculture contributes to the character of 
Acme Township and to prevent the loss of lands Acme has an Open Space Development 
Rights Ordinance and encourages the use of PDR (Purchase of Development Rights)  
THIS ORDINANCE creates a farmland and open space protection program in cooperation with 
other local units of government, designed to protect farmland and open spaces by acquiring 
development rights voluntarily offered by landowners creating agricultural conservation 
easements. 
The Acme Township Future Land Use Map and Landscape Protection Map from 2011 
illustrates that this 100-acre parcel lies within the PDR Eligible Areas/“Agricultural 
Preservation Zone”.  

 
 
It is not clear if the applicant wishes to participate in the program.  However, the 
development of farmettes would not be allowed under the PDR program which is 
designed to preserve farmland for farming and to prevent subdivision of land for 
residential uses.   
 

 
3. Whether the change in the zoning classification would be consistent with the other 

zoning classifications in the district.  
 The rezoning request would be adjacent to other A-1 designated parcels to the north on Bates 

Road and would not create a spot-zoning scenario.  
 



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 
 
4. Whether the change in zoning would be consistent with the current uses and trends in 

the general area. Would it be consistent with the trend and character of the land, 
building and population development of that area? 
A map included for reference includes district and surrounding uses.  

 

 
 
The Existing Land Use Map from the Acme Township Master Plan further illustrates the current use 
as agricultural.  



Page 5 of 7 
 

  
 
5. Whether a change in zoning would require significant additions or changes to public 

service in the area. 
The request is low impact in nature and would not require any significant additions or changes.  
 

6. Whether the change in zoning would create significant traffic impacts to the area. 
The subject property currently has a pending land division application on file (the 
application is currently not complete) for a proposal of 12 parcels with a proposed 
private road to service the parcels off Bates Road. The applicant consulted with the 
Grand Traverse County Road Commission regarding the appropriate location for the 
proposed private road. 
 
Some questions for the applicant regarding traffic impact include:  
Will these farmettes include single-family homes?  
Do you have an estimate for the number of farmworkers that will be living onsite? 
Do you have an estimate of how many times workers not living onsite will access the 
farmettes? 
Will these be year-round residences – or seasonal in nature? 
 

7. Whether there is a public need for the change in zoning classification.  
Prior discussions have occurred about expanding the B-4 District due to the limited number of 
undeveloped parcels in the district and the interest expressed by parties wishing to establish 
businesses of light industrial character, but without available options.  

 

 

 



Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 
The options to expand the district for additional light industrial uses are somewhat limited. To 
the east is Tribal sovereign land, the north is land that is currently in agricultural production, to 
the west across N Bates Rd is a parcel owned by Consumer’s Power used as a substation and due 
west of that parcel is another parcel that is Tribal sovereign land, and to the south is land zoned 
A-1 used primarily by MI Local Hops for their hops production. If there were a shortage of 
industrial zoned parcels the township may need to investigate alternative locations that may not 
be in line with the Master Plan and future land use map.  

 
The conversion of industrial-zoned land to land zoned for non-industrial uses (ex: residential 
development) can weaken the urban economic base, reduce the supply of good-job producing 
land (the potential to keep manufactural and industrial jobs local) and contribute to industrial 
sector urban sprawl. Currently, a PD can be used as a land development option within the 
township that may result in the placement of industrial uses within other zoning districts where 
they may not be allowed under current zoning/industrial spawl. The rise of online retail and 
distribution centers have also compounded the issue by creating competition for remaining 
industrial space. The B4 district is the only district that would allow for this use. The Board 
adopted the Acme Township Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Ordinance which placed 
even greater demand on the district. This is also the only area that allows for self-storage as a 
use by right – to name a few. The Township does not have the authority to grant use variances.  

 
8. Whether the current zoning was a mistake and whether the surrounding area has been 

changed to an extent that the current zoning no longer makes sense.  
Items to Consider: 
• This parcel lies within the PDR Eligible Zone/Agricultural Preservation Zone. Unclear if the 

applicant wishes to apply.  
• The parcel is 100 acres and meets the 5-acre minimum for both the A1 and B4 District(s). 
• It has historically been used for agricultural purposes – formerly owned by Chuck Walter 

used for growing hay.  
• B4/light industrial area and possible expansion area within the Township is limited and 

could contribute to industrial spawl, economic loss, potential loss of future manufacturing 
and industrial jobs.  

 
For further consideration: 
If the request for rezoning is favorable - consider changing the designation of the parcel from Light 
Industrial to Agricultural on the Future Land Use Map to be consistent the PDR Eligible 
Zone/Agricultural Preservation Zone. 
 
Is there any use that the horse shows could operate under in the existing B4 zoning for that would 
eliminate the request for a rezoning – or a smaller portion of the parcel to be rezoned? Some 
examples include:  
Indoor storage for equipment 
Farm equipment sales and service 
Veterinary hospitals and kennels 
 
Would the applicant be favorable to voluntarily enter into the PDR program? 
 
Suggested Motion(s) for Consideration: 
Motion to set a public hearing for _________________ Planning Commission meeting to consider Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment 054 for the application to request to rezone approximately 40 acres of land 
from B-4: Material Processing to A-1: Agricultural located at  Bates Road, Parcel ID 28-01-014-004-
01, owned by Traverse City Horse Shows, LLC.  



Page 7 of 7 
 

 
NOTE – THE PLANNING COMMISSION CANNOT SIMPLY DENY THE REQUEST.  IT MUST HOLD A 
PUBLIC HEARING AND RECOMMEND AN ACTION TO THE BOARD. 
 
Or  
Motion to table the application request for further review.  


	7.26.2022 PC Approved Minutes
	7.26.2022 PC Special Meeting Packet_Draft Minutes
	7.26.2022 PC Special Meeting Packet
	7.26.2022 PC agenda
	CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	ROLL CALL:
	ADJOURN:
	ACME TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION
	SPECIAL MEETING
	ACME TOWNSHIP HALL
	6042 Acme Road Williamsburg, MI 49690
	July 26, 2022 7:00 p.m.

	2022-07-13 Field Observation Report - Acme Connector Trail
	20220718144917815
	ZO 054-Morrissey Staff Report





